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PRESS:

ITEM NO. 1:

Akaku--Maui County Community Television, Inc.

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.C. 06-31 and 06-49)

CHAIR KANE: I would like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance Committee's ... uh ... Lanai
community meeting for April 6, 2006. This is Thursday. Good evening, Lanai. Thanks for having the
committee with you folks this evening. We're here to listen to your comments and thoughts regarding
the Mayor's proposed Fiscal Year 2007 Budget, which will begin on July 1, 2006 and will end on
June 30, 2007. If you have not already done so, we have the sign-up sheets located right here on this
table (on the comer) and we can make sure that you get your sign-up information here to our staff. We
have Ms. Pauline Martins as well as Ms. Shelley Espeleta to assist you. We will be taking you folks in
the order that we received your sign-up. We are going to be giving you a total of four minutes. At three
minutes, we're gonna let you know of that timeframe. Please continue with your testimony and know
that you have another minute to conclude your remarks. At four minutes, you can finish your sentence;
and if you continue to move forward, we will politely interrupt you and ask you to conclude your
remarks. That is just so we can apply the same time for everybody, making sure that we get everybody
with equal time on the microphone. With that, the first thing of course is if you are representing an
organization, we would like to know that; and please, most importantly, state your name for the record.
I will also inform you that we do have public tv here (Akaku) and is taping our meeting, so it will be
replayed at a future date. So we just want you to know that you are on tv, so don't dig your nose or do
something, you know .... (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (laughter) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. First person signed up to testify is Mr. Ron McOmber. He will
be followed by Phyllis McOmber.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MR. MCOMBER: Hello, hello. You don't want me to talk,
(NOTE:
the microphone switch
on.) Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and members of the committee. Mine's gonna be really quick because I
don't ... most ofthis stuffthat we've been asking for over the years has been taken care of. I talked to
the Police Department. I talked to the Fire Department. They are very pleased with the support they're
getting in the rural areas, so they seem to be really in good shape. So there's nothing for me to bitch
about that. I understand, in talking to Riki, that the senior citizens' situation and the leaky roofs has
been taken care of. It's really important that we do that ASAP. As soon as those funds are available, we
need that roof redone because it's gonna turn into a quagmire over there if we don't fix that roof. And
we can't afford to mistreat our senior citizens because a lot of us are. Eighty-eight new positions, use
'em wisely because remember, we're gonna have 'em forever. Once you create those positions, you're
gonna be paying for those positions forever. I wholly support the Police, Parks and Recreation, Fire and
Public Safety in this list more than the others. We need our Police and we need our Parks and
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Recreation kept up. So if we're gonna do 88 positions, have the Mayor use 'em wisely and remember,
you're gonna be paying taxes and wages on those guys for a long time. Support our drug coalition here
on Lanai, anybody here making presentation on drug coalition, our youth programs, our youth center,
and I cannot, you know, this brochure doesn't tell a site specific on CIP Budget. We get 1 percent.
Whoopee! One percent isn't a hell of a lot because you know, mostly Castle & Cooke should be taking
care of most of our stuff; but still 1 percent isn't very much and it's not site specific. I would like to
know what that CIP money is going for. There's been a lot of discussion on affordable housing. Lanai
as far as sensible growth has an agreement with Castle & Cooke to land stuff--we have 65 acres of
affordable land. We need to have some infrastructure money. We need to talk about this down the road,
of putting moneys in the Budget that we can get infrastructure money, hoping the State and the County
do this. The land belongs to you guys but we need to get this going. Also, we're having quite a dispute
on water right now. At $110 a thousand, nobody can farm on this island. Maybe we need to start
looking at the State and County corporation of some kind of subsidized water for the farmers. We have
a 100-acre Ag Park, by the way, but the company wants that water for other uses. We cannot relinquish
that water. That ... we have a half a million to three quarters of a million gallons of water set aside for
that.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. MCOMBER: Wow, that went fast. Last but not least, when I was in Maui on the 9th of March, I think it
was, I gave a presentation to the Water Working Group. This has nothing to do with the agenda, folks,
but I am really upset that we can't piggyback. When you come to Molokai and Lanai and places like
that, that we can't set something aside at the end of the meeting to talk about some of these issues, other
than what's on Budget. You're here now. It's a terrible waste of our money to have you folks sitting
here, come all the way over here. We have other issues we would like to talk to, other than Budget
issues, and most of us don't get--I do because I go over there and talk to you--but most people do not
have an opportunity to talk to you folks; and it's really a waste of County money to have you here and
not listen to some of the things that Lanai people have to say. I just want to throw that in. Thank you
very much for showing up on Lanai and we'll talk to you later. Bye.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. McOmber. Members, any questions for Mr. McOmber? Hearing none.
Thank you
your testimony. Ms. Phyllis McOmber. And
she's heading up, I apologize to the
community. I was remiss
introducing the members. I have Member Tavares on the
side
(Charmaine Tavares), Member Pontanilla, Member Molina, your representative from Lanai (Member
Hokama), Member Mateo from Molokai, from East Maui (Member Carroll), as well as myself (Member
Kane) from the Wailuku district. Thank you for having us again. Ms. McOmber? Forgive me.
Following Ms. McOmber is Sandra Wigger.
MS. MCOMBER: Chairman Kane, Council Chair Hokama, and Council members, thank you so much for
coming. I'm Phyllis McOmber and I really appreciate having the opportunity to speak with you.
Tonight, I'm requesting your consideration and support for the Lanai Women's Center. The center is a
nonprofit organization designed to take care of the women of Lanai with a focus on our physical, mental,
emotional, intellectual, and spiritual welfare. We hope to be carrying out our mission to take care of the
women of Lanai by providing activities and services through partnerships with local organizations as
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well as many off-island organizations that are reaching out to Lanai. We will serve as coordinator,
advocate, resource initiator, and convener, and by working collaboratively to provide space for partners
who cannot provide needed services for Lanai. We definitely are not planning on competing with our
present health care providers. We desire to complement, supplement, and work together with those who
presently serve our community. In 2003, we conducted a survey in English and Ilocano and received
279 responses. That represents 21 percent of the women ages 11 to 80. The results have served as the
basis for our program planning. Recently, we have been encouraged or pushed and shoved to apply for
Federal funds to develop a Lanai Federally qualified health center, which will serve the entire
community, not just the women. Other than Niihau, Lanai is the only island that does not have a
Federally qualified health center. Lanai has among the highest cost of living in the nation and among
the highest proportion in the state of people who hold down two jobs, of children who have both parents
in the workforce, of adolescents who use crystal meth, of people without high school diplomas, of teen
births, of children with decayed teeth, and of women who receive inadequate prenatal care. Lanai has
been designated as a medically underserved population and a health professional shortage area for
primary care, so I think you can see we have some needs. With the assistance of the State Department of
Health and the Primary Care Association, we are in the process of applying for a Federal grant. This is
why I'm here asking for your help to make a significant difference in our community. Castle & Cooke
is in a critical housing and facility shortage; and because of this, there's nothing for us to be able to lease
as a Federally qualified health center. The grant requires a facility before anyone can be considered as a
recipient. Castle & Cooke is working with us so we can lease a site for the center. We will be required
to have a facility up and running within a short time after receiving the grant.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MS. MCOMBER: Our need is for securing a portable, site preparation, shipping, and constructing the building.
And just for your information, the 330 grant, we're not asking for a full grant, which would be 650,000
every year; and after three years, then it's renewable. But we are asking for a half, so it would be
approximately 325,000 a year, which would cover basically the cost of staff and operation. But our
request to you is for 100,000 for a purchase of a portable and the necessary expenses that could vary
depending on the site. We believe this will be a legacy that will care for the people of Lanai for a very
long time and we certainly hope that you (as Council members)
want to be a part of this legacy and
our program. Thank you.
KANE: Thank you, Ms. McOmber. Members, any questions for Ms. McOmber? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Sandra Wigger followed by Roger Ayudan.
MS. WIGGER: Good evening. My name is Sandra Wigger and I'm the Career and Technical Education
Coordinator at Lanai High & Elementary School. I also teach vocational classes and the Careers class.
For the last several years, the County of Maui in partnership with MEDB and Women in Technology
have sponsored a Tech conference in April. This conference consists of a day spent at the Kihei
Technology Center and a day spent at the Maui Space Surveillance complex. During these two days,
students are able to visit all the different businesses at the Kihei Center. They get to meet people. They
get to experience the use of the technology. They get to ask questions. It's a really wonderful event.
Because of the restrictions for security purposes, it's one of the only times that students can actually tour
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the Maui Space Surveillance complex. The cost for a student on Maui to attend this conference is $10
plus the automobile ride to the center. For Lanai, it's a matter of boat fare and ground transportation for
two days, hotel for two nights, meals. It really gets to be quite expensive. The last several years, you in
partnership with the MEDB and Women in Technology have sponsored that for our students. In
partnership, you have ... you provide that boat fare; the ground transportation; the hotel cost; and last
year, you even provided more meals than just the two that are in the brochure. I did have the brochure,
just to refresh your memory, of what you're doing, that you're passing down. In 2003, we sent
26 students ... urn ... you helped 26 students to go to the conference. In 2004 and 2005, you helped
8 students; and then this year, we have 10 students that are going. This is really good. We have students
that are interested in careers like biotechnology and there's businesses there. They are gonna go and
visit and get a real idea of what they ... uh ... will be required of them. When they get done and they
come back, they're so excited about all of the different things that they can do. So I would like to thank
you for supporting this event and I would like to ask you to continue to support the event. It's very
important to our students.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Wigger, for your testimony. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you.
MS. WIGGER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Roger Ayudan. He will be followed by Kris Kahihikolo.
MR. AYUDAN: Good evening. My name is Roger Ayudan. I'm a safety person too. I have four kids, no five
kids, and some young ones too. Actually, I wouldn't be here if I had answers from the office, but
nobody answering me. The trees (the pine trees) is falling down on my car. It's wrecking it up on my
house and for the community too. It's kind of tall the trees, yeah. The branches falling on the branch. I
think you guys should put aside some money and knock it down, or cut some branches down, or
something. I want to cut my tree. It's on the County side. It's encroaching into my lot. I cannot park
there when it's windy, so I wreck my front yard grass. It would be nice if I can cut it down so I can put
one--what is that--fence.
the community too, it's pretty dangerous. It's pretty tall. Just look out
there. I don't know you guys get any report hitting cars. It hit my car three times. Once on the road
and twice my yard, and you don't know when the thing falling. It's pretty heavy, branch on branch. I
hate to ... you guys use the "act of God" kind stufIbecause we see the problem. We should take care of
it before it damages somebody else too. That's all I get to say.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Ayudan. Members, any questions for Mr. Ayudan? Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for being here. Have you talked to anybody in
the County regarding your situation?
MR. AYUDAN: Yes. I tried like ... easy over two years, yet, they no answer. I got no ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Who did you talk to?
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MR. AYUDAN: David Sakado ... Sakada?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, David Sakoda?
MR. AYUDAN: Yeah, and his higher boss. I tried calling him couple days ago, too. I got the police report,
too. Lisa, if you guys want it, I can bring 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
MR. AYUDAN: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Ayudan? Hearing none. Mr. Ayudan, thank you for coming. We
appreciate it. Next to testify is Kris Kahihikolo to be followed by Diane Irons.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Good evening, Honorable Council members. Thank you for taking the time to come to
the island of Lanai to listen to our needs in this small community. My name is Kris Kahihikolo and I'm
the Program Administrator for E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool. Our preschool program is a
licensed nationally accredited and Federally and State registered as a nonprofit organization. Our main
goal is to provide a safe nurturing, developmentally appropriate preschool that's affordable for all
Lanai's children ages two through six. The preschool's governed by a volunteer board of directors that
is served by interested parents and community members. The program is staffed by eight employees.
Three of which have degrees in Education and four of which are working toward degrees through MCC.
Our successes at Keiki 0 Lanai continue with each passing day. We continue to maintain almost all full
enrollment with 34 happy children. We are also happy to announce that we have gone through the
reaccreditation validation visit and we've been reaccredited for the next five years. This prestigious
recognition has been achieved by only 7 percent of the early childhood programs nationwide. The
national association for the education of young children accreditation is rigorous voluntary process by
which early childhood programs demonstrate that they meet national standards of excellence in such
areas as teacher-child ratios, health and safety, curriculum planning, and administration. Because our
preschool's nationally accredited, we need to maintain a high level of quality of standards. All the
employees that work directly with the children have dedicated themselves to taking early childhood
classes for the last several years. With this mind, the preschool has even more qualified teachers who
wages to competitive level to ensure
work 11 months out of the year. Therefore, we need to bring
that we can keep the required number of employees and not lose them to the higher paying jobs with the
Four Seasons Resorts. I cannot stress to you and the other members of the Maui County Council, the
importance of ensuring the successful operation of Lanai's only preschool facility. Research tells us that
the most critical years of life for learning are between birth and eight years of old--age--excuse me.
During this period, attitudes about self and others, values concerning life and learning, are developed,
which will last a lifetime. Yet in today's society, parents are having difficulty providing their young
children with an optimal caring, learning environment. Today, more than 60 percent of the families in
Maui County are juggling the demands of work and family. Quality early childhood programs depend
primarily on the tuition to operate, but we now are struggling to stay in business to serve the families.
Consequently, many children are being placed in unstimulating [sic] unsafe learning environments.
According to research, this can adversely affect children's readiness for formal schooling or
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kindergarten. On the other hand, quality early childhood programs have been proven to make a positive
impact on children's development. Quality early childhood programs can benefit the family because its
members go to work each day secure in the knowledge that their children are in good hands. They
benefit the employers because their workers can focus on the job without the worries about the welfare
of their children. Quality early childhood programs benefit society because they've been found to save
dollars later on in years on social and remedial services. We also understand that families of Lanai have
limited income and resources to survive from day to day.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Thank you. Quality education and training as well as services for special needs children
and families is our specialty. We also provide jobs and on-the-job training for four special needs adults,
who would not have any other place to learn life skills in this community. Because the preschool has
proven to be a quality worthwhile and viable part of the community, I ask for your continued support for
the fiscal year and the one to come. I would also like to thank you at this time for your needs and
attention in the past to Keiki 0 Lanai PreschooL Without your help and assistance, the program would
not be able to provide the quality care and education to Lanai's youngest residents. One more quick
thing. .,. (chuckled) . .. Riki Hokama has a very good hold on what the needs are of this community.
He's been really good about coming out and spending time with people at Tanigawa's almost every
single weekend and we're very fortunate to have a very active Councilmember as he is. I would just ask
if you could kinda--I know you listen to him but he really truly knows the needs of this community. And
so I just, I thank you all for your time and your energies in what you do for all of Maui County. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kahihikolo.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: You're welcome, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your testimony.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Thank you, sir.
KANE: Congratulations again to your n ....,vu"u.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Father of the year in the state of Hawaii--congratulations! Diane Irons to be followed by
Pastor Bob Alpers.
MS. IRONS: Hello. Thank you for coming, tonight. My name is Diane Irons and I represent the Lanai Youth
Center. The Lanai Youth Center is the only organization on the island that offers services to youths ages
7 to 18. We're open five days a week, 12 hours a day. We've developed many partnerships throughout
the community just to enhance our programs. Right now, we're located in a 20 by 40 portable modular
unit and space is really a problem. To remedy our space problem, this year, what we've done is we
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obtained funding and we're offering after-school for credit and not for credit classes and summer session
classes that are held at the school. Right now, we're applying for a Federal grant so we can hopefully
expand this to the elementary school grade kids next year. Tonight, I'm just asking you for your
continued support. We really need a facility that's like similar to Haiku or Kahului, so we are working
towards that. Right now, we are working on getting another modular unit and all of you were gracious
in allowing us to get $50,000 in this past year's Budget. So we're working on getting another portable
unit that's a 20 by 40 unit, and we're gonna put it on the existing property. So that's like a quick fix. So
hopefully, we can get your support and shoot for a permanent building someday. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Irons. Members, any questions for Ms. Irons? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Hi. Good evening, Diane.
MS. IRONS: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony. Over the last year, how much has your ... the
enrollment gone up at the youth center?
MS. IRONS: We have about 150 kids out of the 600 at school. These are registered kids, but then we also have
the drop-in kids that don't register. But the school population is 600 and we're hoping to service as
many as we can. And in our 20 by 40 unit right now, we can safely service say 20 kids.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay, thank you.
MS. IRONS: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. IRONS: I also have some letters from parents. Can Ijust hand it in?
KANE: Sure. Definitely.
MS. IRONS:

you.

CHAIR KANE: Next is Pastor Bob Alpers. Following Pastor Alpers is Mark Hellrung.
MR. ALPERS: Well thank you very much for taking time to come and have this meeting and helping all of us
to be more educated on our County government. My name is Bob Alpers. I come before you as Lanai
representative for Community Work Day, and I want to thank you for keeping our Budget where it has
been for a few years and being consistent. The money that you allot for the Community Work Day pays
for two staff people. Jan Dapitan is still our Executive Director and I think the new person is Charles
Weir. We have a halftime office secretary, who often is a volunteer. They come from other parts of the
country just to come and experience Hawaii. Well at any rate, thank you. For that, we are able to have
good headquarters at Puunene School. And we over here on Lanai don't ... we draw nothing in terms
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of any money. We're all volunteers. As are volunteers all over the island but ... uh ... we rely upon
Community Work Day to supply us with the bags for our crews when they go out and clean up the
highways and the coast, and for promotional material, banners, and further promotional things that we
hand out. We are right now in the middle of "Keep America Beautiful" (March, April, and May) and
hopefully, some of you have had an opportunity to do that. Last year, 2.4 million people worked in the
great American cleanup, 150 of those were from Lanai. We have twelve groups that go out and clean.
They have an area that they clean. Unfortunately, they cannot go out sometimes because they are
cleaning a coastal area and we just can't ... uh ... can't get to it because of the roads. I've learned in
my six years living on Lanai we're an unusual island in that we have no coastal roads. We have no
coastal highways at least. We have some things that are called roads but ... uh ... they can deteriorate
pretty fast. Now what that means then is that ... uh ... it's hard for our people to clean up the coast
even though we do that every Fall. The coastal cleanup is ... uh ... "get the drift and bag it". I think
that's the name of it. We only had two groups that worked last year but they collected 100 bags of trash.
So I want to thank the County also for hauling that off to the dump. You know, I've thought about this
... uh ... it's sort of like the philosophical question that we can't get back and clean up the trash; but
nobody gets back there if we can't get back. Is that, you know, a philosophical question that "if there's
no one in the forest but a coconut falls off the tree, is there any noise?" Does it make any difference if
people can't get there? Well that's the point. We would like for that coast to be much more pleasant as a
place for tourist to go, for our own citizens to go and to enjoy, and until we get something a little more
permanent by way of a road, that's hard to do.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. ALPERS: I think I'm about through. We work beyond just picking up trash. We like to do things like
... uh ... with AmeriCorps Kids, they came over and painted all the tables and the headquarters for the
harbor, the headquarters down at Manele. We're not really a lobbying group here locally but we hear
people say things like "why don't we get rid of that old ugly playground that's been here on the Dole
Square?" And if you noticed, it is gone. I don't know who made that final decision. I guess Castle and
Cooke eliminated it. I was just talking with one of our folks here earlier. I think it would be good if
there were a citizens' group that would work with Castle and Cooke before that's replaced
playground equipment. Now, that's all I have to say on that;
let me say one other thing on another
issue while
up
I
Budget for this fiscal year ...
MS. ESPELETA:

minutes.

MR. ALPERS: Can I take 30 seconds? Okay. I think there was money to repave Fraser Street and nothing has
happened yet. We're still living there with our reservoir. You know, it's ... uh ... that area in front of
the church after any rain of any kind creates a puddle right where you get out of your driver's side of
your vehicle. The church has not been able to part the waters in this case and ... uh ... but we're really
more concerned for the preschool. I mean they come ... these parents come with their little kids and
they have to figure out how to get 'em out of the car without walking through water; and I know it's
been that way for about 100 years but you know, it's ... I hope that it gets fixed this year.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, pastor. Hang on one second, pastor. Hang on one second. (NOTE: The pastor
left the microphone and returned to his seat.) Pastor! ... (chuckled) . .. Pastor Alpers, we have
questions.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's okay.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Bob! Bob, sit down. You can relax. What I'm gonna share is for everybody. We
just asked Public Works, the Highways Division, that same issue you just brought up. I think it was
maybe-CHAIR KANE: Yesterday.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --yesterday, and they (the Department) informed the members that it is on their list
and they're ready to execute a contract shortly. So Fraser Avenue improvements will be starting shortly
and we expect the same cooperation with Castle and Cooke that we had on Lanai Avenue, since most of
their waterline trenching helped to further deteriorate or escalate the deterioration of our roads. So
... uh ... that hasn't been forgotten by the Department.
MR. ALPERS: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, pastor. Mark Hellrung to be followed by Greg Cohen.
MR. HELLRUNG: Good evening, Mr. Chairman and Council members. Thank you for coming to Lanai
tonight. My name is Mark Hellrung.
the General Manager of the Four Seasons Resort at Manele
Bay and the Lodge at Koele.
also a board member of the Lanai Visitors Bureau. I am here tonight
support of funding for ... or continued funding for
Maui Visitors Bureau, which turn funds
two resorts and obviously
IS a
Lanai Visitors Bureau. We employ about 640 employees
very big deal on Lanai, given its employment base and we are hoping to grow that even further.
funding from the Maui Visitors Bureau, which flows into Lanai Visitors Bureau ... (end o/tape, start lB
@ 6:36p.m.) . .. with our own internal marketing dollars to spread the word of Lanai even farther as a
great place to visit, great place to vacation, great place to play golf, get married, have honeymoons, have
a second honeymoon, and to generally just spend time and enjoy yourself. So those dollars are very,
very important to us. As a member of the board, Lanai Visitors Bureau goes out on tradeshows, does a
lot of advertising, is out in the marketplace promoting Lanai as a destination, and ... uh ... we could
not do the work that we need to do without their help and their support. So I'm here tonight in support
of continued funding for the Maui Visitors Bureau. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hellrung. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony.
MR. HELLRUNG: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Greg Cohen to be followed by Kay Okamoto.
MR. COHEN: Hi, good evening. My name is Greg Cohen. I'm the Director of the Lanai Art Center. Thank
you all for coming. We really appreciate personal attention. The art center is the only organization on
the island dedicated solely to providing arts and cultural education and experiences for locals and
visitors. Our focus is on youth education but in the last couple of years, we've broadened our mission
statement, not only to expand our programs for adult art education and experiences, but also to bring arts
and cultural to the entire community in forms outside of education. We benefit from funding from two
Maui County agencies. Our operational grant, which comes from the arts and culture funding, has been
in place since long before I got here. I believe it started in '91. In the last two years, we've also
participated and been funded by the Department of ... uh ... in joint ... uh ... sorry. We work with
Cheryl Sterling in ... uh ... boy, I'm just blanking on this Department here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: OED.
MR. COHEN: Thank you--OED. Thank you.... (chuckled) . " Our annual funding enables us to provide our
continuing education opportunities for locals and visitors, and when I got here our grant evaluation
scores on the art and culture side were in the low sixties and we were in the bottom third of applicants.
We've worked really hard to change that to pay attention to what you want to see ... urn ... and to not
only improve our grant applications, which we've been scoring in the nineties (in the top five) now in
the last two years, but also to improve our accounting practices and make it easier and take stress off the
people who work with us to support and fund those grants. Our funding from OED and HTA has
enabled us to present one free Hawaiian music live outdoor concert for the community, which was
accomplished for the first time in December down at Manele Bay, featuring Keola Beamer and
... uh ... we're already at work on our concert for 2006. Our operational funding, we've really tried to
make the most of that. When I started, we were serving 25 keiki a week our kids ... our education
class.
number has more than doubled to 60. We've gone from Wednesday offerings only to
a
week offerings. We've also used our increased presence and professionalism
funding ...
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
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MR. COHEN: The funding we've gotten from you to not only leverage other funding. We've received
increased funding from State foundation on culture and the arts. I have secured a 30 percent annual
increase in my funding from Castle and Cooke. So we're working not only to make the most of what we
get from you but to show other people that if we get support, we make the most of it and they're
responding as well, which takes pressure off of our need to be funded from your side of the table. I just
... uh ... we're working hard to increase what we offer and improve our relationships with all our grant
agencies. Ijust want you to be aware that we've taken big steps. We have more plans. When I got here,
there wasn't even a five-year plan in place for this organization, and to say thanks and ask for your
continued support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Cohen. Members, any questions for our testifier this evening? If not, thank
you very much.
MR. COHEN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Kay Okamoto to be followed by Karen Mendes.
MS. OKAMOTO: Good evening, Council members. I'm Kay Okamoto and thank you for being here, tonight.
I am here tonight representing the Lanai Visitors Bureau. I am Chairperson of the board. I have been
with Lanai Visitors Bureau on their board for the last four years and do want to thank you for the
funding that we've received from the Maui Visitors Bureau. If it were not for County funding--which of
course I know that you realize you're the only County that steps up to the plate and really funds the
visitor bureau, which is wonderful--we would have almost nothing. The visitor bureau really works to
push Lanai as a destination and not just the resorts. Our board is a wide range of people on the board
and really work to get Lanai information out there as a destination. So I want to thank you for the
funding that you've been doing and ask for your continued support for the Maui Visitors Bureau.
Second thing, you'll notice--and I feel very strongly--most of the people here who are testifying are
nonprofit organizations and it seems like that's the best way to put our money to use. The groups that
are asking for your support are really making good use of their funds through preschool and youth center
and senior center. And I, like Mr. McOmber, have a bit of a problem with maybe so many additional
bodies as far as Council--not Council--County employees. I think that maybe the continued funding for
nonprofits is a better way to use our money. When we hire employees, they're
of with you for a
long time. And
sure that some of those employees are definitely needed
I would ask that you
really take a close look at adding that large of a number to the County Budget. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Okamoto. Members, any questions for our testifier? Seeing none. Thank you
very much. Karen Mendes and she'll be followed by Fairfax Reilly.
MS. MENDES: I'm Karen and thank you for coming to Lanai. I'm speaking on behalf of the MEO. I want to
thank the Council and also the Mayor for all supporting the concerns of the MEO program. And from
the Lanai seniors, we thank you very much for supporting all the MEO concerns that benefit the people
ofMaui County. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mendes. Members, any questions for Ms. Mendes? Seeing none. Thank you
very much. Fairfax Reilly.
MR. REILLY: Karen and I are different height, there. (NOTE: He So adjusting the microphone stand.) I don't
want to break it. That would be terrible. '" (chuckled) . " Aloha. Thank you for coming to Lanai.
I'm testifying tonight as an individual and I appreciate the opportunity to have served on the Lanai
Planning Commission. I'm ... uh ... it's so hard in three minutes. I'm gonna focus on planning issues.
One, I appreciate the GPAC process and ... urn ... I am on that and I look forward to these long-term
planning. That's kind of what I enjoy doing and I think Lanai has some issues to confront. So I hope
GPAC goes ahead and we haven't yet had a meeting yet on Lanai but I hope that will happen soon. And
I wanted to support ... uh ... Focus Maui Nui. I know that is a concept and when they came here, they
worked with the students at the school and within the community. I thought they provided us with some
pretty good data as to what was happening on Lanai. I am concerned about affordable housing on Lanai.
We are ... uh ... we continue to have a growing community and ... urn ... although invisible, I am
quite certain we have some homeless people ... uh ... individuals on Lanai, who are ... people may be
living in a vehicle or some kind of a shelter. As you know, the price of housing has increased rapidly on
Lanai and I'm sure there ... I understand that the County has 65 acres and there's a group working on
that. Hawaiian Homelands are developing some homes but ... uh ... I continue to see a need for State
and County workers, people coming to Lanai to service the County and the community, and rentals with
Kaumalapau project going and some of the Castle and Cooke projects, housing price and housing
availability is very limited on Lanai. I'm also concerned about disaster planning. I happen to be in
Honolulu last week during the rainstorms. I know that the police and Gen Inuma from the County have
been developing a disaster plan but as you know, the plan is only as good as the funding available to it
and the practice and the facilities placed in the actual planning. I think the police and everybody's been
working very hard but from what I've seen is that unless we really invest a lot of resources in a clear
disaster plan, just going to the lodge and going to the school gym in case of a disaster is very limited and
I hope we continue to work on those. I am concerned about the air ambulance and air ambulance
services to this community. We may even get to a point where we might have to use the ferry. I mean in
an emergency to ship people to Maui, I can foresee if the airport was closed due to a Kona storm. So I
think Lanai, we gotta look a little differently at how we provide emergency services. We can stay here a
long time if nothing is available and I know there's some contingent plans place.
like to see ...
MS.

Three
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MR REILLY: Yes, thank you. And the last two ... urn ... I would hope that you would look at the drainage
plan for Lanai City. I know RM. Towill and ... uh ... I guess RM. Towill submitted a plan. It's
associated with the disaster planning and that in a severe storm, we know that the water runs through
this city and I have seen the draft plan and I hope that is instituted and funded so that the city is
protected and these homes are protected. I was just doing a little exploration about flood insurance
myself for my horne and I think there's some confusion in the community about the availability of flood
insurance for homes and exactly what that means. Lastly, the Water Use Development Plan, I know has
been in draft for a long time and I would hope that the body reviews the Water Use Development Plan
for Lanai City and comes to some conclusions on that at an appropriate time. Thank you very much .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Reilly. Members, any questions for Mr. Reilly? Seeing none. Thank you very
much. Is there anybody else here who has not signed up or testified that would like to? Now is your
opportunity to step forward. Seeing nobody step forward, members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA and 11)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: Lanai community, we want to thank you for allowing us to corne and hear your thoughts
regarding the proposal. We will be continuing our deliberations and actually fact-finding at this point
and so we are in meetings everyday with the Administration. It's open for public testimony and we are
able to receive written testimony and you are able to call. I believe there's an 800 line here on the island
of Lanai that can contact the Maui offices to get in touch with any of your Council members. So please
feel free to engage us, so that we can hear your continued thoughts regarding the proposal. We will be
deliberating on decision-making regarding the Budget in the week of the 24th through the 28 th is what
our plan is and then it will be going to the full Council for official action to be taken place before
May 31 st. So again, thank you very much for having us. Members, any announcements? Mr. Hokama?
Hearing none. Members, this meeting for April 6, 2006 Lanai City is adjourned.
ADJOURN: 6:48
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